
If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format or language, please call Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services 
Officer on 01432 261885 or e-mail rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Regulatory Sub Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 13 December 2011 

Time: 1.00 pm 

Place: The Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 Hafod Road, 
Hereford 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Ricky Clarke, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01432 261885 
Email: rclarke@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 



 

 

What is a personal interest? 
 

You have a personal interest in a matter if that 
matter affects the well-being or financial position of 
you, your relatives or people with whom you have a 
close personal association more than it would 
affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to 
which the matter relates. 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or 
people with whom you have a close personal 
association positively or negatively. If you or they 
would stand to lose by the decision, you should 
also declare it. 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it 
relates to any interests, which you must register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal 
interest? 
 

You must declare it when you get to the item on the 
agenda headed “Declarations of Interest” or as 
soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still 
speak and vote unless it is a prejudicial interest. 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been 
appointed by the authority, or a body exercising 
functions of a public nature, you only need declare 
the interest if you are going to speak on the matter. 
 

What is a prejudicial interest? 
 

You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the 

relevant facts, would reasonably think your 
personal interest is so significant that it is 
likely to prejudice your judgment of the public 
interest; and 

b)  the matter affects your financial interests or 
relates to a licensing or regulatory matter; 
and 

c)  the interest does not fall within one of the 
exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 
the Code of Conduct. 

 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial 
interest? 
 

If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw 
from the meeting. However, under paragraph 12(2) 
of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public 
are allowed to make representations, give evidence 
or answer questions about that matter, you may 
also make representations as if you were a 
member of the public. However, you must withdraw 
from the meeting once you have made your 
representations and before any debate starts. 

GUIDANCE ON DECLARING PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 
 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Regulatory Sub 
Committee 
Membership  

Councillor BA Durkin  
Councillor JW Hope MBE  
Councillor Brig P Jones CBE  

 
  

 
 

 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  13 DECEMBER 2011 

 

 

AGENDA 
 Pages 
   
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN     
   
 To elect a Chairman for the hearing.  
   
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE     
   
 To receive apologies for absence.  
   
3. NAMED SUBSTITUTES (IF ANY)     
   
 To receive details any details of Members nominated to attend the meeting 

in place of a Member of the Committee. 
 

   
4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST     
   
 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on 

the Agenda. 
 

   
5. PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER TO DIVERT PART OF FOOTPATH 

EA6   
1 - 4  

   
 To consider an application under the Highways Act 1989 Section 119, to 

make a Public Path Diversion Order to divert part of footpath EA6 in the 
Parish of Eastnor. 

 

   
Background Papers - Drawing Number D338/129-6 5 - 6  
   
6. PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER TO DIVERT PART OF FOOTPATH 

BE15   
7 - 10  

   
 To consider an application under Highways Act 1980, section 119, to make 

a public path diversion order to divert part of footpath BE15 in the parish of 
Brilley. 

 

   
Background Papers - Drawing Number D404/58-15 11 - 12  
   
7. APPLICATION FOR A VARIATION OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'THE 

HOP POLE, 9 THE SQUARE, BROMYARD, HR7 4BP.'   
13 - 18  

   
 To consider an application for the variation of a premises licence in respect 

of ‘The Hop Pole, 9 The Square, Bromyard, HR7 4BP’. 
 

   
Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Application Form 19 - 40  
   
Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Alcohol Designation Order 41 - 44  
   
Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Email from Applicant 45 - 46  
   
Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Police Representation 47 - 48  
   
Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Public Representation 49 - 50  
   
8. APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'MCCOLLS, 

7 THE OVAL, HEREFORD, HR2 7HG.'   
51 - 58  

   
 To consider an application for a review of the premises licence relating to 

‘McColls, 7 The Oval, Hereford, HR2 7HG’ called by Herefordshire Council 
Trading Standards. 

 

   
Background Papers - McColl's - Application Form 59 - 64  
   
Background Papers - McColl's - Police Representation 65 - 66  
   
Background Papers - McColl's - Emails From Local Ward Member 67 - 70  



 

 

   
9. APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'STOKES 

STORES, 4 HOARWITHY ROAD, PUTSON, HEREFORD, HR2 6HA.'   
71 - 76  

   
 To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of 

Stokes Stores, 4 Hoarwithy Road, Putson, Hereford, HR2 6HA called by 
Herefordshire Council Trading Standards. 

 

   
Background Papers - Stokes Stores - Application Form 77 - 82  
   
Background Papers - Stokes Stores - Police Representation 83 - 84  
   



The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

 
 
 

Public Transport Links 
 
• Public transport access can be gained to Brockington via the service runs approximately 

every 20 minutes from the City bus station at the Tesco store in Bewell Street (next to the 
roundabout junction of Blueschool Street / Victoria Street / Edgar Street). 

• The nearest bus stop to Brockington is located in Vineyard Road near to its junction with 
Old Eign Hill.  The return journey can be made from the same bus stop. 

 
 

 
 



HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

BROCKINGTON, 35 HAFOD ROAD, HEREFORD. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to Assembly Point A which is located in the 
circular car park at the front of the building.  A check will be 
undertaken to ensure that those recorded as present have vacated 
the building following which further instructions will be given. 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Where possible this agenda is printed on paper made from 100% Post-Consumer 
waste. De-inked without bleaching and free from optical brightening agents (OBA). 
Awarded the Nordic Swan for low emissions during production and the Blue Angel 
environmental label 

 



 

D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\1\3\AI00025313\$itq0a1y1.doc 

LICENCING HEARING FLOW CHART  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTRODUCTION 

DISCUSSION  

REPORT BY COUNCIL 
• Outline of application 
• Summary of issues  

 

Parties address Committee using 
spokesman if necessary  

Applicant addresses Committee 

Member of Committee can ask 
questions 

Cross examination generally not 
permitted.  

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak.  

NOTE:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in party’s absence. 





 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Chris Chillingworth, Rights of Way Officer, on 01432 842100 

  

$jr0y0bjr.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: REGULATORY SUB COMMITTEE 

DATE:  13 DECEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: FOOTPATH EA6 (PART) EASTNOR PUBLIC PATH 
DIVERSION ORDER 2011 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  PLACE BASED COMMISSIONING 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

 

Wards Affected 

Ledbury 

Purpose 

To consider an application under the Highways Act 1989 Section 119, to make a Public Path 
Diversion Order to divert part of footpath EA6 in the Parish of Eastnor. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

THAT a public path diversion Order is made under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as 
illustrated on drawing number D338/129-6  

Key Points Summary 

• The landowner, Eastnor Castle Estates Co., applied for the diversion of part of footpath EA6, in 
the Parish of Eastnor, in July 2000. 

• The reason for proposing the diversion is that the existing footpath is obstructed by pheasant 
rearing sheds. 

• The proposed diversion is not significantly longer than the existing route. 

• Pre-order consultation and negotiations have been carried out and the proposal has general 
support. 

Alternative Options 

1 Under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has the power to make diversion 

AGENDA ITEM 5

1



Orders; it does not have a duty to do so. The Council could reject the application on the 
grounds that it does not contribute sufficiently to the wider ambitions and priorities of the 
Council. However, as the proposal allows for unobstructed access and has general support 
this could be considered unreasonable.  

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Public Path Order should be made because it is felt that it meets the criteria set out in 
Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 and the Herefordshire Council’s Public Path Order 
Policy. 

Introduction and Background 

3 This report is being considered by the Regulatory Sub Committee because it has the 
delegated authority to make or not to make an Order.  

Key Considerations 

4  Eastnor Castle Estates Co. applied for a diversion on 12th July 2000. The reason given for 
 making an application was to move the footpath away from pheasant rearing sheds. 

5  Pre-Order consultation was not carried out until December 2010 mainly because of lack of 
 resources available at the time the application was made. 

6  The proposal has general agreement and support; all potential objections have, we believe, 
 been overcome through negotiation. However, the Byways and Bridleways Trust 
 representative has commented on the possibility that bridleway rights may exist over the path 
 to be diverted. These alleged rights are unproven but if subsequently found to exist would be 
 unaffected by this diversion order resulting in the existence of two rights of way over the land-
 the original route as a bridleway and the new route as a footpath. The landowner has been 
 made aware of this potential problem but wishes to proceed with the application as it stands. 

7  The applicant has agreed to pay for administration and advertising costs and the cost of 
 bringing the diverted footpath into operation.  

8  The Local Members, Councillors P J Watts and E P J Harvey, have raised no objections to the 
 application. 

9  The proposed diversion meets the specified criteria set out in Section 119 of the Highways Act 
 1980, and in particular that: 

10  The proposal benefits the owner of the land 

11  The proposal is not substantially less convenient to the public. 

12  It would be expedient to proceed with the proposal given the effect it will have on public 
 enjoyment of the path.   

Community Impact 

13      The Parish Council and local user groups have been consulted as part of the process and the 
proposal has general agreement and support. Councillors PJ Watts and EPJ Harvey have 
been consulted and have not objected to the proposal. 

2



Financial Implications 

14 The applicant has agreed to pay the Council’s administration costs in respect of making a 
diversion Order, to pay associated advertising costs, and to meet the costs of bringing the  
diverted footpath into operation. 

Legal Implications 

15     Under Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, the Council has the power to make diversion 
Orders; it does not have a duty to do so.  

Risk Management 

16      Should an Order be made to divert part of footpath EA6, as recommended within this report, 
 there is a risk that the Order will receive objections and would then require referral to the 
 Secretary of State which could increase the demands on officer time and resources. However, 
 extensive informal consultations and negotiations have taken place to minimise the risk of 
 such objections.  

Consultees 

17             Prescribed organisations as per Defra Rights of Way Circular 1/09.  

Local Members Councillors PJ Watts and EPJ Harvey.  

Eastnor Parish Council 

Statutory Undertakers.  

Appendices 

18 Drawing number D338/129-6. 

Background Papers 

19         None identified. 

3



4



5



6



 

 
 

$qfwug4ex.doc 26Nov08 

MEETING: REGULATORY SUB COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: THE COUNTY OF HEREFORDSHIRE DISTRICT 
COUNCIL FOOTPATH BE15 (PART) BRILLEY 
PUBLIC PATH DIVERSION ORDER 2011 

PORTFOLIO AREA:   PLACE BASED COMMISIONING 

 

CLASSIFICATION: Open 

Wards Affected 

Castle 

Purpose 

            To consider an application under Highways Act 1980, section 119, to make a public path diversion 
order to divert part of footpath BE15 in the parish of Brilley. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

That a public path diversion order is made under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980, as 
illustrated on drawing number: D404/58-15 

Key Points Summary 

• After purchasing the affected land the applicants applied for this diversion in July 2009.  After 
moving to the property the landowners became aware that the route of the footpath being 
walked on the ground is not the route shown on the current definitive map.   

• The landowners have since converted outbuildings into 3 separate dwellings and would have 
ideally liked to have diverted the path as part of these works under the Town & Country 
Planning Act.  The works carried out which affected the legal route of the path (i.e fencing and 
landscaping) were not deemed as “being necessary to enable the development to take place” 
the test to be met under the Town & Country Planning Act, hence this application for a 
Highways Act diversion order.  

• The proposed diversion route is the one which walkers have been using for a number of years 
on a permissive basis.  The current legal route contains 4 stiles whilst the proposed route 
contains 2 pedestrian gates and no stiles.  The proposed route is therefore more convenient to 
path users of all abilities. 

AGENDA ITEM 6

7



• Pre-order consultation and negotiations have resulted in there being no outstanding objections 
to the proposal 

Alternative Options 

1 Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make diversion 
Orders; it does not have a duty to do so.   

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 The Public Path Order should be made because it is felt that it meets the criteria set out in 
Section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 and Herefordshire Council’s Public Path Order Policy. 

Introduction and Background 

3 This report is being considered by the Regulatory Sub Committee because it has the 
delegated authority to make a decision whether or not to make an order. 

Key Considerations 

4 The landowners made an application on 28th July 2009.  The reason for making the application 
was to officially divert the footpath to the route which has been walked on the ground for a 
number of years. 

5 The applicant has agreed to pay for advertising and to reimburse, in full, the Council’s 
standard charge applicable at the time of application (£800 in 2009) for making the diversion 
order. 

6 The local member, Councillor J W Hope has raised no objections to this application. 

7 The proposed diversion meets the specified criteria as set out in Section 119 of the Highways 
Act 1980, and in particular that: 

• The proposal benefits the owner of the land  

• The proposal is not substantially less convenient to the public 

• It would be expedient to proceed with the proposal given the effect it will have on 
 public enjoyment of the paths.  Works have been carried out by the landowner 
 following suggestions made by the Ramblers Association and Open Spaces Society in 
 order to improve access for all along the route. 

Community Impact 

8    The Parish Council and local user groups have been consulted as part of the process and the                                  
proposal has general agreement and support.  Councillor J W Hope has been consulted and 
has not objected to the proposal.                                                           

Financial Implications 

9     The applicant has agreed to pay the Council’s standard fee for the making of a diversion order 
and to pay associated advertising costs.  The applicant will be charged the rate applicable in 
2009 (£800).  The applicant has also agreed to meet the cost of bringing the paths into 
operation. 

8



 

Legal Implications 

10      Under section 119 of the Highways Act 1980 the Council has the power to make a diversion 
order.  It does not have a duty to do so.  

Risk Management 

11      If an order is made to divert part of public footpath BE15 as recommended with this report, 
there is a risk that the order will receive objections.  This would then require referral to the 
Secretary of State which could increase the demands on officer time and resources.  
However, extensive informal consultations and negotiations have taken place in order to 
minimise the risk of such objections. 

Consultees 

12 Prescribed organisations as per DEFRA Rights of Way Circular 1/09. 

      Local Member J W Hope 

      Brilley Parish Council 

      Statutory undertakers 

Appendices 

13 Order plans (number D404/58-15) 

Background Papers 

• none identified 

 

Further information on this report is available from Vincent Playdon, Public Rights of Way Officer 
on 01432 842111 

 

9



10



11



12



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542  

  

MEETING: REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A 
PREMISES LICENCE ‘THE HOP POLE, 9 THE 
SQUARE, BROMYARD, HR7 4BP – 
LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH & WELLBEING SERVICES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 
Bromyard 

Purpose 
To consider an application for the variation of a premises licence in respect of ‘The Hop Pole, 9 The 
Square, Bromyard, HR7 4BP’. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

 THAT Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate 
weight to: 

• The steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives, 
• The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 
• The Guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and 
• The Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy. 

  

Key Points Summary 

• One (1) representation from a member of the public 

• Two (2) representations from Responsible Authorities (Police & Trading Standards)  

AGENDA ITEM 7

13



Options 

1 a) Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 
accompanying the application and the mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 
2003, 

 
b) Grant the licence subject to modified conditions to that of the operating schedule where the 

committee considers it necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives and add 
mandatory conditions set out in the Licensing Act 2003, 

 
c) To exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the 

application relates, 
 

d) To refuse to specify a person in the licence as the premise supervisor, or 
 

e) To reject the application. 
 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

Introduction and Background 

3 Background Information 
   

Applicant The Hop Pole (Bromyard) Ltd 

Meridan House, 6 Great Cornbow, Halesowen, B63 3AB  

Representative N/A 

Type of application: 

New Application 

Date received: 

20/10/2011 

28 Days consultation 

17/11/2011 

 
    

Licence Application 
 

4 The application for a variation of the premises licence has received representation and is 
brought before the committee for determination. 

 
       Current Licence 
 
5 The premises is currently licensed as follows: - 

 
 Provision of regulated entertainment, A performance of live music (Indoors), Any playing of 
 recorded music (Indoors), Provision of entertainment facilities, Making music (Indoors), 
 Provision of refreshment or alcohol, Sale by retail of alcohol (For consumption both on and off 
 the premises) 

14



 All days:  11:00 - 00:00 
  
 Non Standard Hours:  
  Sale of Alcohol: All Bank Holidays to 01- 00 Christmas Eve ,New Years Eve , Easter  
  Saturdayto 02.00 St Patricks Day , St Georges Day , Haloween to 01.00 
  
  Seasonal variations: None 

 
 Summary of Application 
 
6 The application requests that: 
 

An area to the front and rear of the premises should be licensed between the hours of 11 am 
and 12.30 pm. 
 
Non Standard Timings: None 
   
Seasonal variations: None 

 
 
Summary of Representations 

7 A copy of the representations can be found within the background papers. 
 
8 Representations have been made by: 

 One (1)  member of the public  
Two(2)  from Responsible Authorities (Trading Standards & Police who have objected 
   to the application) 

  
Key Considerations 
 
9 To consider what action should be taken, if any, to promote the four licensing objectives in 

accordance with the recommendation. 

10 The area to be licensed is covered by ‘The Herefordshire (Alcohol Consumption in Designated 
Public Places) Order (No. 4) 2006 which covers the Bromyard area and specifies Market 
Square and Rowberry Street. The map attached to the order clearly shows the area 
surrounding the Hop Pole.  

11 If a premises licence was to be issued to cover the area applied for then the ‘Alcohol Free 
Zone’ would in effect be suspended during the hours covered by the premises licence and for 
a period of 30 minutes thereafter. 

Community Impact 
 
12 The granting of the licence as applied for may have an impact on the Community.  

Legal Implications 
 
13 The Committee should be aware of a number of stated cases which have appeared before the 

Administrative Court and are binding on the Licensing Authority. 

14 The case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: 
CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 

15



May 2008, [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice 
Black. 

 In this case it was summed up that: - 
15 A licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 

section 182. Licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do so but will need 
to give full reasons for their actions. 

16 Furthermore the Thwaites case established that only conditions should be attached to a 
licence with a view to promoting the Licensing objectives and that ‘real evidence’ must be 
presented to support the reason for imposing these conditions. 

17 This judgement is further supported in the case of The Queen on the Application of Bristol 
Council v Bristol Magistrates' Court, CO/6920/2008 High Court of Justice Queen's Bench 
Division The Administrative Court, 24 February 2009, [2009] EWHC 625 (Admin) 2009 WL 
648859 in which it was said: 

 ‘Licensing authorities should only impose conditions which are necessary and proportionate 
for the promotion for licensing objectives’.  

 In addition to this it was stated that any condition attached to the licence should be an 
enforceable condition. 

  

18 Schedule 5 gives a right of appeal to: - 

Rejection of applications relating to premises licences 

1 Where a licensing authority—  

 (a)  rejects an application for a premises licence under section 18, 

 (b)  rejects (in whole or in part) an application to vary a premises licence under section 35, 

 (c)  rejects an application to vary a premises licence to specify an individual as the 
premises supervisor under section 39, or 

 (d)  rejects an application to transfer a premises licence under section 44,  

the applicant may appeal against the decision. 

Decision to grant premises licence or impose conditions etc. 

2 (1)  This paragraph applies where a licensing authority grants a premises licence under 
section 18.  

(2)  The holder of the licence may appeal against any decision—  

(a) to impose conditions on the licence under subsection (2)(a) or (3)(b) of that section, 
or  

(b) to take any step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of that section (exclusion of 
licensable activity or refusal to specify person as premises supervisor).  

(3)  Where a person who made relevant representations in relation to the application desires 
to contend—  

(a) that the licence ought not to have been granted, or  

(b) that, on granting the licence, the licensing authority ought to have imposed different 
or additional conditions, or to have taken a step mentioned in subsection (4)(b) or (c) of 
that section,  

 he may appeal against the decision. 

16



(4) In sub-paragraph (3) “relevant representations” has the meaning given in section 18(6). 

 

19 Section 9 states that any such appeal must be made to a Magistrates Court for the area in 
which the premises are situated within 21 days of notification of the decision. 

 
Consultees 

20 Responsible authorities and persons living within the vicinity or with a business interest within 
the vicinity of the premises. 

21 A copy of the application was served on the responsible authorities. This was backed up by an 
email sent to them by the Licensing Authority. 

22 The notice of application was displayed on the premises prior to the start of the consultation 
period and for a period of 28 days. In addition, notice of the application was required to be 
published in a newspaper which was circulated within the vicinity of the premises. 

23 The applicant has produced a copy of the advertisement which is correct. 

Appendices 

24 a. Application Form 
 b. Public Representation  
 c. Police Representation 
 d. Trading Standards Representation 
 e. The Herefordshire (Alcohol Consumption in Designated Public Places) Order (No. 4) 
  2006 
  
 
  

 
Background Papers 
 
Background papers are available for inspection in the Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford, 30 minutes before the start of the hearing. 

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542  

$wrsnqhdj.doc  

MEETING: REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF PREMISES LICENCE: MCCOLLS, 7 
THE OVAL, HEREFORD. HR2 7HG – LICENSING 
ACT 2003 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

Belmont 

Purpose 

To consider an application for a review of the premises licence relating to ‘McColls, 7 The Oval, 
Hereford, HR2 7HG’ called by Herefordshire Council Trading Standards. 

Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

 THAT Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate 
weight to: 

• The steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives, 
• The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 
• The Guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and 
• The Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy. 

 

Key Points Summary 

• 3rd Review of Premises Licence 

• Called following a further underage sale. 

• One representation received from a responsible authority. 

• One representation received from interested parties. 

AGENDA ITEM 8

51



Options 

1 Take no action or 

Take any of the following steps: -  

  (a) to modify the conditions of the licence;  

 (b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;  

 (c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;  

 (d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;  

 (e) to revoke the licence;  

 

 and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or 
omitted or any new condition is added. 

Where the authority takes a step mentioned in subsection (a) or (b), it may provide that the 
modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) 
as it may specify. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Background Information 
   

Applicant Herefordshire Council – Trading Standards 

Premise Licence 
Holder 

Martin McColl Ltd, Martin McColl House, Ashwells Road, 
Brentwood, Essex, CM15 9ST 

Solicitor DWF, Liverpool 

Type of application: 

Review 

Date received: 

21/10/11 

28 Days consultation 

18/11/11 

 
4 Current Licence 

The current licence authorises the following licensable activities during the hours shown: - 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol (off sales):  
On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m.  

52



5 Previous Review 
This licence was first reviewed by the Regulatory Sub-Committee on 4th November 2008. 

The grounds for that review were: - 
The premise has been the subject of eight separate test purchase operations since the start of 
the Licensing Act in November 2005. On two of these occasions 3 sales have occurred. 

The decision of that Committee was: - 

That the following additional condition been imposed upon the licence from 4 February 2009:- 
• Personal licence holder to be on site at all times during sales of alcohol. 

 
That the following additional conditions be imposed forthwith upon the licence:- 

• That the use of ‘Challenge 25’ is made a condition of all sales made on the premises. 
• Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just personal licence 

holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks of commencing employment. 
Evidence of training to be retained in writing and to be available for inspection by any 
authorised person and trading standards officers. 

• Prominent signs publicising the age challenge policy to be displayed at the entrance to 
the premises, at the tills and in all areas where alcohol is being displayed. 

 
The premises licence was further reviewed on 10th August 2009. 

The grounds for that review were: 
The premises has been the subject of a number of test purchase operations involving youths 
aged 15 and 16 years between August 2005 and November 2008. 
 
A total of 9 test purchase operations have been carried out and during those 3 sales were 
made. 
 
On that occasion the Committee attached the following condition: 

• Two members of staff must endorse each sale of alcohol by signature. 
 
No appeal was lodged with the Magistrates Court in respect of either decision. 

6 Summary of Application 
The application for review relates to the following licensing objectives: - 

• Prevention of Public Nuisance 
• Protection of Children from harm 

 
7 The grounds for the review are: - 
 The premises is a general store situated on the outskirts of Hereford.   

 The request for this review is based on the licensing objectives regarding the prevention of 
 crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm. 

8 The information provided to support this application is: - 
 At 1900 hours on Saturday 15th October 2011 Herefordshire Council trading standards 
 department, and the West Mercia Constabulary carried out a test purchase operation at the 
 premise. 

 One(1) 16 year old female, who was 5’ 2” tall was sold alcohol (Eight [8] Cans of Blackthorn 
 Cider 4.7% strength) without being challenged concerning her age. 

53



 The seller was a personal licence holder who made no challenge regarding the females age.  

 After the sale when challenged the seller stated that he thought she was over 25. 

 Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy states that any premises failing a test purchase will be 
 reviewed. 

 The premises has been the subject of 2 further reviews following test purchases in the past.  

 On 4th November 2008 the Licensing Committee imposed the following conditions: 

• Personal licence holder to be on site at all times during sales of alcohol. 
• That the use of ‘Challenge 25’ is made a condition of all sales made on the premises. 
• Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just personal licence 

holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks of commencing employment. 
Evidence of training to be retained in writing and to be available for inspection by any 
authorised person and trading standards officers. 

• Prominent signs publicising the age challenge policy to be displayed at the entrance to 
the premises, at the tills and in all areas where alcohol is being displayed. 

 

 On 10th August 2009 the Licensing Committee imposed the following condition: 

• Two members of staff must endorse each sale of alcohol by signature. 
 
 They also suspended the licence for a period of 7 days commencing at 0001 on Tuesday 1 
 September 2009.  

 At the time of the operation there were numerous notices displayed within the premises 
 advertising that they operated a ‘Challenge 30’ policy. 

 The condition imposed on 10th August 2009 that ‘Two members of staff must endorse each 
 sale of alcohol by signature’ did not take place. 

9 Further Information 
  On 8th November officers from Herefordshire Council went to the store where a further test 
 purchase operation was carried out. On this occasion a 23 year old purchased four cans of 
 ‘Strongbow Cider. Again no challenge was made regarding his age and again two members 
 of staff did not sign the sale off. 

 The training records were asked for and whilst records were being kept there was no evidence 
 of the training which had been received by staff. 

 This incident is now the subject of a criminal investigation. 

10 Summary of Representations 
Copies of the representations and suggested conditions can be found within the background 
papers. 
 

11 Responsible Authorities 
A representation has been received from the West Mercia Police.  

12 Interested Parties 
One (1) representation has been received from a ward councillor. 
 

54



 
Key Considerations 

13 To consider what action should be taken, if any, to promote the four licensing objectives in 
accordance with the recommendation. 

 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Reviews states at 
paragraph: - 

 11.26  There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises, 
  which the Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. These 
  are the use of the licensed premises: 

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of the proceeds 
 of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, 
 which does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
• for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the 
 health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for 
 crime of young people; 
• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and 
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 
 

 11.27  It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law enforcement  
  agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively 
  to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority 
  determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the 
   premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the  
  licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. We would 
  also encourage liaison with the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership. 
 

The attention of the Committee is drawn to the stated case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral 
Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's 
Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 May 2008,  [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 
1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice Black.  

In this case it was summed up that: - 

“Among other things, section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that in carrying out its functions a 
licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. The requirement is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. 
However, it is recognised that the Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of 
circumstances that may arise and so long as the Guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood and considered, licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do 
so. When doing so, licensing authorities will need to give full reasons for their actions. 
Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons 
given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and 
merits of any decision taken.”   

Community Impact 

14 It is felt that any decision made will have a minimal impact on the Community. 

55



 
 
Legal Implications 

15 Schedule 5 Section 8(2) gives a right of appeal to: - 

a) the applicant for the review, 

b) the holder of the premises licence, or 

c) any person who made relevant representation in relation to the application. 

 

16 Section 9 states that any such appeal must be made to a Magistrates Court for the area in 
which the premises are situated within 21 days of notification of the decision. 

 

Consultees 

17 Responsible authorities and persons living or with a business interest within the vicinity of the 
premises. 

18 A copy of the application was served on the responsible authorities. This was backed up by an 
email sent to them by the Licensing Authority. 

19 The notice of review was displayed on the premises prior to the start of the consultation period 
and was displayed for 28 days. In addition the notice was also displayed at the offices of the 
Licensing Unit at Bath Street, Hereford over the same period.  

 

Appendices 

20 a. Application Form for Review 
 

b. Police Representation 
 
c. Interested party representation 
 
 

Background Papers 

Background papers are available for inspection in the Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 30 minutes before the start of the hearing. 

 

 

56



 

NOTES 

 

REVIEWS 

11.7  Representations must be in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing or may 
stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to an amplification of the 
original representation may not be made at the hearing.  

11.22  ‘A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected with 
licensable activities’. ‘Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise 
of any issue. This is a matter for the courts of law. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the 
criminal courts of certain individuals but not all’. ‘Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not 
be for the licensing authority to attempt to go behind any finding of the courts, which should be treated 
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them’. 

11.25  There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises, which the 
Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the 
licensed premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of the proceeds of 
drugs crime;  

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;  
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which 

does considerable damage to the industries affected;  
• for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the health, 

educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of young 
people;  

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;  
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;  
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;  
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;  
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and  
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.  

 

Section 52 (11) A determination under this section does not have effect— 

  (a) until the end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or 

  (b) if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of. 

57



 

Licensing Authority’s power to exercise substantive discretionary powers. 

 

The British Beer and Pub Association (2) The Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers (3) 
The British Institute of Inn keeping V Canterbury City Council. 

 

Contesting the validity of the Licensing policy that asks for certain requirements before the application 
has been submitted.  In the summing up the Judge states; the scheme of the legislation is to leave it 
to applicants to determine what to include in their applications, subject to the requirements of Section 
17 and the Regulations as to the prescribed form and the inclusion of a statement of specified matters 
in the operating schedule.  An applicant, who makes the right judgement, so that the application gives 
rise to no relevant representations, is entitled to the grant of a licence without the imposition of 
conditions.  The licensing authority has no power at all to lay down the contents of an application and 
has no power to assess an application, or exercise substantive discretionary powers in relation to it, 
unless there are relevant representations and the decision – making function under section 18 (3) is 
engaged.   
 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



 

 
Further information on the subject of this report is available from 

Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542  

$xutmokq0.doc  

MEETING: REGULATORY SUB-COMMITTEE 

DATE: 13 DECEMBER 2011 

TITLE OF REPORT: REVIEW OF A PREMISE LICENCE ‘STOKES 
STORES, 4 HOARWITHY ROAD, PUTSON, 
HEREFORD. HR2 6HA’. – LICENSING ACT 2003 

PORTFOLIO AREA:  HEALTH & WELLBEING SERVICES 

CLASSIFICATION: Open  

Wards Affected 

St Martins & Hinton 

Purpose 

To consider an application for a review of a premises licence in respect of Stokes Stores, 4 Hoarwithy 
Road, Putson, Hereford, HR2 6HA called by Herefordshire Council Trading Standards. 
 
Key Decision  

This is not a Key Decision.  

Recommendation 

 THAT Sub-Committee determine the application with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives in the overall interests of the local community. They should give appropriate 
weight to: 

• The steps that are necessary to promote the licensing objectives, 
• The representations (including supporting information) presented by all parties, 
• The Guidance issued to local authorities under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 

2003, and 
• The Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy. 

 

Key Points Summary 

• 2nd Review of Premises Licence 

• Called following a further underage sale. 

• One representation received from a responsible authority. 

AGENDA ITEM 9

71



Options 

1 Take no action or 

Take any of the following steps: -  

  (a) to modify the conditions of the licence;  

 (b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence;  

 (c) to remove the designated premises supervisor;  

 (d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;  

 (e) to revoke the licence;  

 

 and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or 
omitted or any new condition is added. 

Where the authority takes a step mentioned in subsection (a) or (b), it may provide that the 
modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) 
as it may specify. 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2 Ensures compliance with the Licensing Act 2003. 

Introduction and Background 

3 Background Information 
   

Applicant Herefordshire Council – Trading Standards 

Premise Licence 
Holder 

Mrs Christine Ann Merrett, 20 Thompson Place, 
Whitecross, Hereford. HR4 0JP. 

Representative Inn Confidence 

Type of application: 

Review 

Date received: 

21/10/11 

28 Days consultation 

18/11/11 

 
4 Current Licence 

The current licence authorises the following licensable activities during the hours shown: - 
 
Sale by retail of alcohol (off sales):  
On weekdays, other than Christmas Day, 8 a.m. to 11 p.m. 
On Sundays, other than Christmas Day, 10 a.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
On Christmas Day, 12 noon to 3 p.m. and 7 p.m. to 10.30 p.m. 
On Good Friday, 8 a.m. to 10.30 p.m.  
 

72



5 Previous Review 
This licence was previously reviewed by the Regulatory Sub-Committee on 4th November 
2008. 

The grounds for that review were: - 
The premise had been the subject of eight separate test purchase operations since the start of 
the Licensing Act in November 2005. On 3 occasions sales had occurred. 

The decision of that Committee was: - 
That the License be suspended in respect of all licensable activity for a period of 24 hours. 

That the following additional condition be imposed upon the licence from 4 February 2009:- 
• Personal licence holder to be on site at all times during sales of alcohol. 

 
That the following additional conditions be imposed forthwith upon the licence:- 

• That the use of ‘Challenge 21’ is made a condition of all sales made on the premises. 
• Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just personal licence 

holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks of commencing employment. 
Evidence of training to be retained in writing and to be available for inspection by any 
authorised person and trading standards officers. 
 

6 Summary of Application 
The application for review relates to the following licensing objectives: - 

• Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
• Protection of Children from harm 

 
7 The grounds for the review are: - 
 The premises is a general store situated on the outskirts of Hereford.   

 The request for this review is based on the licensing objectives regarding the prevention of 
 crime and disorder and the protection of children from harm. 

8 The information provided to support this application is: - 
 On the evening of Saturday 15th October 2011 Herefordshire Council trading standards 
 department and the West Mercia Constabulary carried out a test purchase operation at the 
 premise. 

 One (1) 16 year old female, who was 5’ 2” tall was sold alcohol (2 litre bottle of Woodpecker) 
 without being challenged concerning her age. 

 At the time the female store assistant requested ID, but was told by another member of staff 
 that this was not needed as the person was over 21. The person who said this was a personal 
 licence holder. 

 Herefordshire Council Licensing Policy states that any premises failing a test purchase will be 
 reviewed. 

 The premises has been the subject of a further review following a failed test purchase in the 
 past.  

 On 4th November 2008 the Licensing Committee imposed the following conditions: 
• Personal licence holder to be on site at all times during sales of alcohol. 
• That the use of ‘Challenge 21’ is made a condition of all sales made on the premises. 
• Train all staff engaged in selling alcohol in alcohol awareness (not just personal licence 

holders). All new staff to be trained within two weeks of commencing employment. 

73



Evidence of training to be retained in writing and to be available for inspection by any 
authorised person and trading standards officers. 
 

 They also suspended the licence for a period of 24 hours.  

 At the time of the operation there were notices displayed within the premises advertising that 
 they operated a ‘Challenge 25’ policy and the 2 members of staff present where wearing ‘No 
 ID No Sale’ badges. 

9 Summary of Representations 
Copies of the representations and suggested conditions can be found within the background 
papers. 
 

10 Responsible Authorities 
A representation has been received from the West Mercia Police.  

Key Considerations 

11 To consider what action should be taken, if any, to promote the four licensing objectives in 
accordance with the recommendation. 

 Guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 in respect of Reviews states at 
paragraph: - 

 11.26  There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises, 
  which the Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. These 
  are the use of the licensed premises: 

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of the proceeds 
 of drugs crime; 
• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms; 
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, 
 which does considerable damage to the industries affected; 
• for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the 
 health, educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for 
 crime of young people; 
• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography; 
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children; 
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs; 
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks; 
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and 
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol. 
 

 11.27  It is envisaged that licensing authorities, the police and other law enforcement  
  agencies, which are responsible authorities, will use the review procedures effectively 
  to deter such activities and crime. Where reviews arise and the licensing authority 
  determines that the crime prevention objective is being undermined through the 
   premises being used to further crimes, it is expected that revocation of the  
  licence – even in the first instance – should be seriously considered. We would 
  also encourage liaison with the local Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership. 
 
12 The attention of the Committee is drawn to the stated case of Daniel Thwaites Plc v Wirral 

Borough Magistrates' Court (Case No: CO/5533/2006) at the High Court of Justice Queen's 
Bench Division Administrative Court on 6 May 2008,  [2008] EWHC 838 (Admin), 2008 WL 
1968943, Before the Honourable Mrs Justice Black.  

74



In this case it was summed up that: - 

“Among other things, section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that in carrying out its functions a 
licensing authority must have regard to guidance issued by the Secretary of State under 
section 182. The requirement is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that extent. 
However, it is recognised that the Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of 
circumstances that may arise and so long as the Guidance has been properly and carefully 
understood and considered, licensing authorities may depart from it if they have reason to do 
so. When doing so, licensing authorities will need to give full reasons for their actions. 
Departure from the Guidance could give rise to an appeal or judicial review, and the reasons 
given will then be a key consideration for the courts when considering the lawfulness and 
merits of any decision taken.”   

Community Impact 

13 It is felt that any decision made will have a minimal impact on the Community. 
 
Legal Implications 

14 Schedule 5 Section 8(2) gives a right of appeal to: - 

a) the applicant for the review, 

b) the holder of the premises licence, or 

c) any person who made relevant representation in relation to the application. 

 

15 Section 9 states that any such appeal must be made to a Magistrates Court for the area in 
which the premises are situated within 21 days of notification of the decision. 

Consultees 

16 Responsible authorities and persons living or with a business interest within the vicinity of the 
premises. 

17 A copy of the application was served on the responsible authorities. This was backed up by an 
email sent to them by the Licensing Authority. 

19 The notice of review was displayed on the premises prior to the start of the consultation period 
and was displayed for 28 days. In addition the notice was also displayed at the offices of the 
Licensing Unit at Bath Street, Hereford over the same period.  

Appendices 

20 a. Application Form for Review 
 

b. Police Representation 
 

Background Papers 

Background papers are available for inspection in the Council Chamber, Brockington, 35 
Hafod Road, Hereford 30 minutes before the start of the hearing. 

 

75



NOTES - REVIEWS 

11.7  Representations must be in writing and may be amplified at the subsequent hearing or may 
stand in their own right. Additional representations which do not amount to an amplification of the 
original representation may not be made at the hearing.  

11.22  ‘A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly connected with 
licensable activities’. ‘Licensing authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise 
of any issue. This is a matter for the courts of law. Some reviews will arise after the conviction in the 
criminal courts of certain individuals but not all’. ‘Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not 
be for the licensing authority to attempt to go behind any finding of the courts, which should be treated 
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them’. 

11.25  There is certain criminal activity that may arise in connection with licensed premises, which the 
Secretary of State considers should be treated particularly seriously. These are the use of the 
licensed premises:  

• for the sale and distribution of Class A drugs and the laundering of the proceeds of 
drugs crime;  

• for the sale and distribution of illegal firearms;  
• for the evasion of copyright in respect of pirated or unlicensed films and music, which 

does considerable damage to the industries affected;  
• for the purchase and consumption of alcohol by minors which impacts on the health, 

educational attainment, employment prospects and propensity for crime of young 
people;  

• for prostitution or the sale of unlawful pornography;  
• by organised groups of paedophiles to groom children;  
• as the base for the organisation of criminal activity, particularly by gangs;  
• for the organisation of racist activity or the promotion of racist attacks;  
• for unlawful gaming and gambling; and  
• for the sale of smuggled tobacco and alcohol.  

 

Section 52 (11) A determination under this section does not have effect— 

  (a) until the end of the period given for appealing against the decision, or 

  (b) if the decision is appealed against, until the appeal is disposed of. 

Licensing Authority’s power to exercise substantive discretionary powers. 

The British Beer and Pub Association (2) The Association of Licensed Multiple Retailers (3) 
The British Institute of Inn keeping V Canterbury City Council. 

Contesting the validity of the Licensing policy that asks for certain requirements before the application 
has been submitted.  In the summing up the Judge states; the scheme of the legislation is to leave it 
to applicants to determine what to include in their applications, subject to the requirements of Section 
17 and the Regulations as to the prescribed form and the inclusion of a statement of specified matters 
in the operating schedule.  An applicant, who makes the right judgement, so that the application gives 
rise to no relevant representations, is entitled to the grant of a licence without the imposition of 
conditions.  The licensing authority has no power at all to lay down the contents of an application and 
has no power to assess an application, or exercise substantive discretionary powers in relation to it, 
unless there are relevant representations and the decision – making function under section 18 (3) is 
engaged.   

76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84


	Agenda
	
	LICENCING HEARING FLOW CHART

	5 Public Path Diversion Order to Divert Part of Footpath EA6
	Background Papers - Drawing Number D338/129-6
	6 Public Path Diversion Order to Divert Part of Footpath BE15
	Background Papers - Drawing Number D404/58-15
	7 APPLICATION FOR A VARIATION OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'THE HOP POLE, 9 THE SQUARE, BROMYARD, HR7 4BP.'
	Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Application Form
	Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Alcohol Designation Order
	Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Email from Applicant
	Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Police Representation
	Background Papers - The Hop Pole - Public Representation
	8 APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'MCCOLLS, 7 THE OVAL, HEREFORD, HR2 7HG.'
	Background Papers - McColl's - Application Form
	Background Papers - McColl's - Police Representation
	Background Papers - McColl's - Emails From Local Ward Member
	9 APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF THE PREMISES LICENCE 'STOKES STORES, 4 HOARWITHY ROAD, PUTSON, HEREFORD, HR2 6HA.'
	Background Papers - Stokes Stores - Application Form
	Background Papers - Stokes Stores - Police Representation

